
   
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disability Act that requires the meeting or materials 
at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk, 810 Shorewood Boulevard, or phone 267-2680, during regular 
business hours at least 48 hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request. 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the Village of Shorewood Hills who are not members of the 
above committee may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. However, no formal action will be taken by any governmental body 
at the above meeting other than the committee identified in the caption of this notice. 
 

Page 1 of 1 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Meeting Announcement &Agenda at 7:30 a.m. 
Friday, November 9, 2018 

Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Statement of Public Notice  

4. Board Matters 

A. Resolution No. 2018-11: Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 2018-11, 

approving a Property Acquisition and Improvement Agreement among the Village, DPPG, 

LLC (aka Psychiatric Services), and Marshall Court Investors, LLC. The agreement 

provides for the conveyance of land to the Village for bike path and public right of way, 

the construction of certain improvements to DPPG, LLC property, and accommodating 

certain parking needs for DPPG, LLC.2. 

  

B. Resolution No. 2018-12: Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 2018-12, 

approving a Tri-Party Agreement among the Village, Marshall Court Investors, LLC, and 

University Station Limited Partnership. The agreement provides for the dedication of 

certain land and the conveyance of an easement to the Village for bike path purposes, a 

number of conveyances of real property needed to facilitate the reconfiguration of certain 

parcels, the construction of a new storm sewer main, and related issues. 

  

C. Resolution No. 2018-13: Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 2018-13, 

approving a Termination of Easements agreement among the Village, DPPG, LLC, 

Marshall Court Investors, LLC, 2715 Marshall Court, LLC, and 700 University Bay Drive, 

LLC. The agreement provides for the termination of certain cross easement interests in 

property, in order to facilitate the dedication of lands for public right of way and bike path 

purposes. 

  

D. Resolution No. 2018-14: Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 2018-14, 

approving a certified survey map relating to the Lodgic Development, University Station 

and other lands in the Marshall Court Neighborhood. 

5. Adjourn 

https://www.shorewood-hills.org/vertical/sites/%7B00D5AF3F-ADFE-4173-AF3A-FC0C1A78DA4B%7D/uploads/res_R-2018-11.pdf
https://www.shorewood-hills.org/vertical/sites/%7B00D5AF3F-ADFE-4173-AF3A-FC0C1A78DA4B%7D/uploads/res_R-2018-12.pdf
https://www.shorewood-hills.org/vertical/sites/%7B00D5AF3F-ADFE-4173-AF3A-FC0C1A78DA4B%7D/uploads/res_R-2018-13.pdf
https://www.shorewood-hills.org/vertical/sites/%7B00D5AF3F-ADFE-4173-AF3A-FC0C1A78DA4B%7D/uploads/res_R-2018-14.pdf


 

  1 

Memorandum 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees   

From: Karl Frantz 

 
Date:    11/8/2018 

 

Re: Summary of items for Board meeting of November 9 at 7:30 a.m. 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
              

Agreement with Psychiatric Services (DPPG) 

Attached to this memo is a summary of the agreement with Psychiatric Services (DPPG) that has 

been under negotiation over the course of the last several months. A copy of the entire agreement is 

also enclosed. Multiple negotiating meetings involving the Village President, Village Administrator, 

Village Engineer and Attorney have occurred with representatives of Psychiatric Services.   The 

agreement falls within the parameters discussed with the Board on August 9.  The Village is paying 

$197,500 for property acquisition including the bike path and street right of way. The Village will 

also construct new parking at an estimated cost of $80,000. In addition, the Village has agreed to 

make phased parking accommodations during the various stages of the project when the typical   

parking patterns are disrupted due construction activity.  

 

Tri Party Agreement  

Also enclosed is a tri party agreement involving the Village, Marshall Court Investors, (Lodgic) and 

University Station for bike path property acquisition as well as other property transactions between 

University Station and Marshall Court Investors.  A summary of the agreement is also enclosed.  

 

Release of Cross Easements 

A critical component of this project also involves the release and termination of cross easements 

involving DPPG, Marshall Court Investors, 700 UBD and the Village. Documents related to that are 

enclosed.   

 

Certified Survey Map 

 A certified survey map is also enclosed that will need approval. It has been reviewed and 

recommended by the Plan Commission. 

 



L:\DOCS\006480\002699\MISC\3ID1085.DOCX 

11/7/2018 7:02 PM 

Summary of Main Elements 

DPPG, LLC – Village of Shorewood Hills – Marshall Court Investors, LLC 

Conveyance of lands for street and bike path purposes 

Draft date:  November 7, 2018 

 

1. PARTIES TO AGREEMENT:  Village, DPPG, and Marshall Court Investors, LLC. 

 

2. DPPG, LLC OBLIGATION: convey to the Village fee simple title to certain lands 

(“DPPG Right-of-Way”) depicted on Exhibit A, and to be described in a CSM to 

be prepared by the Village).  DPPG, LLC will provide evidence of good title in the 

form of title policy commitment showing title to be good and marketable.   

 

3. VILLAGE OBLIGATIONS. 

 

A. Prepare a 2-lot certified survey map depicting as one lot the lands to be 

conveyed to the Village, and as another lot the lands to be retained by 

DPPG, LLC.  The CSM will be prepared at Village expense, and will be 

subject to DPPG’s reasonable approval. 

 

B. Pay $197,500 to DPPG, LLC, at closing. 

 

C. Construct the improvements to DPPG, LLC property in accordance with 

the plans depicted on Exhibit B.  At the completion of the work, DPPG 

must have not less than 23 marked parking stalls, as depicted on Exhibit B.  

This work will be done at the Village’s sole cost.  The work will take place 

and be completed during 2019. 

 

D. Parking Accommodations: 

 

(1) Phase 1 (phase 1 being defined as the time between conveyance of 

Parcel A to the Village, and the commencement of installation of 

gravel base along that portion of bike path between University Bay 

Drive and the easterly boundary of DPPG’s existing property).  

Following DPPG’s conveyance of Parcel A to the Village, the 

Village will allow DPPG the exclusive use, for parking, of all 

existing parking areas on the entirety of DPPG’s existing property 

(including Parcel A).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the 

start of Phase 1 and upon the recording of the Lodgic CSM, and 

continuing until Phase 1 is completed, the Village will allow DPPG 

and Marshall to use the newly dedicated right-of-way south of Lot 3 

of the Lodgic CSM for ingress and egress and for parking, and 

DPPG will have the exclusive use of 6 parking places in that area. 

 



L:\DOCS\006480\002699\MISC\3ID1085.DOCX 

11/7/2018 7:02 PM 

(2) Phase 2 (phase 2 being defined as the time during which the Village 

is installing gravel base along that portion of the bike path between 

University Bay Drive and the easterly boundary of DPPG’s existing 

property):  During Phase 2, DPPG will have the exclusive use, for 

parking, of all existing parking areas on the entirety of DPPG’s 

existing property (including Parcel A).  During Phase 2, neither 

DPPG nor Marshall will have any right to park on the public right-

of-way south of Lot 3 on the Lodgic CSM.  

 

(3) Phase 3 (phase 3 being defined as the time that begins when the 

gravel base has been installed on the bike path, and continues while 

the Village is constructing the DPPG Property Improvements, and 

constructing the improvements to Catafalque Drive, excepting only 

the final coat of asphalt):  During Phase 3, DPPG will have the 

exclusive use of the bike path (now improved with gravel base), 

from University Bay Drive to the easterly boundary of DPPG’s 

existing property, for parking purposes.  The Village will install 

temporary signs giving notice that the bike path is for the exclusive 

use of DPPG.  The bike path, when used for parallel parking during 

this time, will accommodate not less than 15 parked vehicles.  When 

Phase 3 ends, DPPG shall have no further right to park on the bike 

path.  

 

(4) Phase 4 (phase 4 being defined as the time that begins when the 

Village has completed work on DPPG property, and has completed 

work on Catafalque Drive, excepting the final coat of asphalt):  

During phase 4, DPPG will have access to all of the parking on 

DPPG property.  During phase 4, the Village will manage the 

Catafalque Drive right-of-way in such a manner that DPPG will 

have access to all of the parking on DPPG property. 

 

(5) Phase 5 (phase 5 being defined as a 24-hour time-period during 

which the Village is installing the final coat of asphalt on Catafalque 

Drive, and DPPG will not have access to parking on the southerly 

and westerly sides of its property):  During Phase 5, Marshall (or the 

subsequent owner of the property at 2725 Marshall Court) shall 

provide DPPG with 13 parking spaces on Lot 3 at no cost to DPPG. 

 

4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT.  Neither party will be obligated to perform the above 

obligations unless:  (1) a CSM that conforms substantially to the draft CSM 

attached as Exhibit C is approved by all necessary parties (the Village, Marshall 

Court Investors, LLC, and University Station Limited Partnership), and recorded 

with the Register of Deeds; and (2) all those having cross-easement interests in the 



L:\DOCS\006480\002699\MISC\3ID1085.DOCX 

11/7/2018 7:02 PM 

DPPG Right-of-Way property to be conveyed to the Village have agreed to 

terminate those easements.  Marshall Court Investors agrees to terminate its cross 

easement over such property; and (3) DPPG has executed the agreement to 

terminate the cross easements over the parking parcels south of Lots 2 and 3 

shown on the CSM attached as Exhibit C. 

 

5. CLOSING.  The closing on the conveyance of title and payment to DPPG will occur 

as soon as practicable after the execution of the agreement. 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

  



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 



 

  



 

 

 



 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-11 

 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROPERTY ACQUISTION AND  

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

(DPPG, LLC) 
 

RECITALS 

A. DPPG, LLC (“DPPG”) owns certain land in the Village of Shorewood Hills.  The Village 

would like to purchase part of DPPG’s land for the purpose of building a public street and 

public bike path.  DPPG is willing to sell part of its land to the Village, subject to the terms 

and conditions of the Agreement attached as Attachment A (the “Agreement”). 

B. Marshall Court Investors, LLC (“Marshall”) plans to undertake certain redevelopment 

activities and dedicate certain land for public right-of-way, all in the vicinity of DPPG’s land.  

Marshall has asked DPPG to release certain cross-easement interests DPPG has in Marshall’s 

land, pursuant to a separate agreement.  Part of the consideration for DPPG’s willingness to 

release its cross-easement interest in Marshall’s land is Marshall’s willingness to mitigate 

certain impacts on DPPG parking, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. 

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills hereby resolves as 

follows: 

1. The Property Acquisition and Improvement Agreement attached as Attachment A is approved. 

2. The Village President, Village Clerk, Village Administrator and Village Attorney are 

authorized to execute the Agreement and take all other actions needed to implement the 

Agreement. 

The above Resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the Village Board of the Village of 

Shorewood Hills on the _______ day of _____________________, 2018. 

APPROVED 

 

By _____________________________  

David Renforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST 
 
________________________________ 

Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

Attachment A – Property Acquisition and Improvement Agreement 



ATTACHMENT  A 

 

PROPERTY ACQUISTION AND IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

(DPPG, LLC Property) 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into as of the _______ day of_________________, 2018 

(the “Agreement”), by and among the Village of Shorewood Hills, a Wisconsin municipal 

corporation (the “Village”), DPPG, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability corporation (“DPPG”), 

and Marshall Court Investors, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability corporation (“Marshall”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

1. DPPG owns certain land in the Village of Shorewood Hills.  The Village would 

like to purchase part of DPPG’s land, for the purpose of building a public street and public bike 

path. 

 

2. DPPG is willing to sell part of its land to the Village, subject to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  

 

3. Marshall plans to undertake certain redevelopment activities and dedicate certain 

land for public right-of-way, all in the vicinity of DPPG’s land.  Marshall has asked DPPG to 

release certain cross-easement interests DPPG has in Marshall’s land, pursuant to a separate 

agreement.  Part of the consideration for DPPG’s willingness to release its cross-easement 

interest in Marshall’s land is Marshall’s willingness to mitigate certain impacts on DPPG 

parking, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

In consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises, obligations and benefits 

provided hereunder, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, DPPG, the 

Village and Marshall agree as follows: 

 

A. DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms, when having an initial 

capital letter, shall mean: 

 

1. DPPG Property.  The property located at 2727 Marshall Court (bearing Parcel ID 

No. 181/0709-212-8185-5), and the additional parcel located immediately South of 2727 Marshall 

Court (bearing Parcel ID No. 181/0709-212-8080-0), in the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane 

County, Wisconsin. 

 

2. Parcel A.  That portion of the DPPG Property depicted as the area within the 

“Proposed Right of Way Boundary” on Exhibit A to this Agreement.  The precise description of 

Parcel A will be established by a certified survey map to be prepared by the Village at Village 

expense, and will be subject to DPPG’s reasonable approval.  

 



2 

3. DPPG Property Improvements.  Improvements to the DPPG Property (excepting 

Parcel A) as depicted on Exhibit B. 

 

4. Logic CSM.  The certified survey map attached as Exhibit that conforms 

substantially to the certified survey map attached as Exhibit C. 

 

B. CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY.  DPPG will sell and the Village will purchase 

Parcel A pursuant to the terms and conditions in this Agreement.  DPPG will cooperate with the 

Village’s efforts to prepare and record a certified survey map (the “DPPG CSM”)that will create 

and describe Parcel A, and create and describe a second lot consisting of the DPPG Property 

excepting Parcel A. 

 

1. Purchase Price.  The purchase price for Parcel A shall be $197,500.00. 

 

2. Title Evidence. DPPG shall promptly (and no later than 20 days before Closing) 

obtain and deliver to Village a commitment for an owner’s title insurance policy (Current ALTA 

owner’s form) issued by a title insurance company licensed to issue title insurance in Wisconsin 

showing title to the Property as of a date no more than 15 days before delivery of such title evidence 

to be merchantable, subject only to local zoning regulations, utility easements, and liens which 

will be paid out of the proceeds of closing, naming the Village as the proposed owner-insured of 

the Parcel A in the amount of the Purchase Price (the "Commitment").  Within 15 days after receipt 

of the Commitment, the Village will make objections to the title to Parcel A based upon 

examination of the Commitment, said objections to be made by written notice or be deemed 

waived.  If any objections are so made, DPPG shall be allowed 40 days after the making of such 

objections by the Village to cure such objections and obtain appropriate endorsements to the 

Commitment indicating that any such objections have been cured.  Pending the correction of the 

title, the Closing Date and the payments hereunder required shall be postponed, but upon 

correction of the title and within 15 days after written notice of such correction given by DPPG to 

the Village, DPPG and the Village shall close and perform this Agreement according to its terms.  

If DPPG does not cure the Village’s objections by the Closing Date, or if title to the Property is 

not good and marketable of record in DPPG at the Closing Date, then the Village may choose to 

not close and terminate this Agreement, or the Village may elect to waive the objection and accept 

the title to the Property in its unmarketable condition.  DPPG shall also provide gap insurance 

coverage to insure merchantable title through the recording of the warranty deed. 

 

3. Closing.  Closing on the Village’s purchase of Parcel A shall take place as soon as 

practicable after the execution of this Agreement and the recording of the certified survey map 

creating parcel A.  At the closing, DPPG shall deliver to the Village: 

 

(a) A properly executed agreement terminating the cross easements over the 

DPPG Property. 

 

(b) The DPPG CSM, properly executed by DPPG. 

 

 



3 

(c) A Warranty Deed properly executed by DPPG in recordable form 

conveying Parcel A to the Village and warranting title thereto subject to no exceptions except those 

to which the Village has not objected or has expressly agreed to pursuant to section B.2 hereof. 

 

(d) A standard Owner’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, encroachment or boundary line 

questions, and related matters, properly executed on behalf of Owner. 

 

(e) A resolution adopted by the DPPG evidencing the DPPG’s authority to 

convey Parcel A to the Village. 

 

(f) A “marked-up” commitment (initialed by the appropriate title company 

officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no exceptions except those to which the 

Village has not objected or has expressly agreed to pursuant to Section B.2. hereof, effective as of 

the date of closing.  DPPG shall be responsible for the payment of the premium for such policy of 

title insurance. 

 

C. VILLAGE CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATIONS.  Following closing, the Village shall 

construct the DPPG Property Improvements.  The DPPG Property Improvements shall be 

constructed during 2019.  At the completion of the work, DPPG must have not less than 23 marked 

parking stalls, as depicted on Exhibit B.  DPPG requests that the Village construct the DPPG 

Property Improvements, and authorizes the Village to enter and occupy DPPG Property for the 

purpose of constructing the DPPG Property Improvements.   

 

D. PARKING ACCOMODATIONS.  Following closing, and during 2019, the Village will 

be undertaking construction activities in the vicinity of the DPPG Property, including construction 

of the DPPG Property Improvements, construction of a bike path, and construction of Catafalque 

Drive.  The Village and Marshall agree to mitigate the impact the construction activities will have 

on DPPG’s access to parking, as follows: 

 

1. Phase 1 (phase 1 being defined as the time between conveyance of Parcel A to the 

Village, and the commencement of installation of gravel base along that portion of bike path 

between University Bay Drive and the easterly boundary of DPPG’s existing property).  Following 

DPPG’s conveyance of Parcel A to the Village, the Village will allow DPPG the exclusive use, for 

parking, of all existing parking areas on the entirety of DPPG’s existing property (including Parcel 

A).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the start of Phase 1 and upon the recording of the 

Lodgic CSM, and continuing until Phase 1 is completed, the Village will allow DPPG and Marshall 

to use the newly dedicated right-of-way south of Lot 3 of the Lodgic CSM for ingress and egress 

and for parking, and DPPG will have the exclusive use of 6 parking places in that area. 

 

2. Phase 2 (phase 2 being defined as the time during which the Village is installing 

gravel base along that portion of the bike path between University Bay Drive and the easterly 

boundary of DPPG’s existing property):  During Phase 2, DPPG will have the exclusive use, for 

parking, of all existing parking areas on the entirety of DPPG’s existing property (including Parcel 

A).  During Phase 2, neither DPPG nor Marshall will have any right to park on the public right-of-

way south of Lot 3 on the Lodgic CSM.  

 



4 

3. Phase 3 (phase 3 being defined as the time that begins when the gravel base has 

been installed on the bike path, and continues while the Village is constructing the DPPG Property 

Improvements, and constructing the improvements to Catafalque Drive, excepting only the final 

coat of asphalt):  During Phase 3, DPPG will have the exclusive use of the bike path (now 

improved with gravel base), from University Bay Drive to the easterly boundary of DPPG’s 

existing property, for parking purposes.  The Village will install temporary signs giving notice that 

the bike path is for the exclusive use of DPPG.  The bike path, when used for parallel parking 

during this time, will accommodate not less than 15 parked vehicles.  When Phase 3 ends, DPPG 

shall have no further right to park on the bike path.  

 

4. Phase 4 (phase 4 being defined as the time that begins when the Village has 

completed work on DPPG property, and has completed work on Catafalque Drive, excepting the 

final coat of asphalt):  During phase 4, DPPG will have access to all of the parking on DPPG 

property.  During phase 4, the Village will manage the Catafalque Drive right-of-way in such a 

manner that DPPG will have access to all of the parking on DPPG property. 

 

5. Phase 5 (phase 5 being defined as a 24-hour time-period during which the Village 

is installing the final coat of asphalt on Catafalque Drive, and DPPG will not have access to 

parking on the southerly and westerly sides of its property):  During Phase 5, Marshall (or the 

subsequent owner of the property at 2725 Marshall Court) shall provide DPPG with 13 parking 

spaces on Lot 3 at no cost to DPPG. 

 

E. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO AGREEMENT OBLIGATIONS. 

 

All of the following must occur before either party’s obligations under this Agreement 

shall become effective.   

 

1. The Village, DPPG and Marshall must approve and execute this Agreement. 

 

2. A CSM that conforms substantially to the Lodgic CSM must be approved by all 

necessary parties and recorded with the Register of Deeds for Dane County. 

 

3. All necessary parties must properly execute an agreement to terminate the cross 

easements over the DPPG Property, to be held by DPPG pending closing. 

 

4. DPPG must execute an agreement to terminate the cross easements over the parking 

parcels south of Lots 2 and 3 on the Lodgic CSM.  

 

F. GENERAL CONDITIONS. 

 

1. Amendment/Modification.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by 

a written amendment approved and executed by the Village, DPPG and Marshall. 

 

2. Entire Agreement/Appendices Incorporated.  This written Agreement and the 

attachments hereto shall constitute the entire Agreement among the Village, DPPG and Marshall 

as of the date hereof. 

 



5 

3. Severability.  If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is held by the courts 

to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the 

validity of any other part, term, or provision and the rights of the parties will be construed as if the 

invalid part, term, or provision was never part of the Agreement.  

 

4. Immunity.  Nothing contained in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of the 

Village’s sovereign immunity under applicable law. 

 

5. Personal Jurisdiction and Venue.  Personal jurisdiction and venue for any civil 

action commenced by any party arising out of this Agreement shall be deemed to be proper only 

if such action is commenced in Circuit Court for Dane County unless it is determined that such 

Court lacks jurisdiction.   

 

6. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state of 

Wisconsin. 

 

7. No Private Right or Cause of Action.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be inter-

preted or construed to create any private right or any private cause of action by or on behalf of any 

person not a party hereto. 

 

8. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date and year first 

written above. 

 

9. Construction of Agreement.  Each party participated fully in the drafting of each 

and every part of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed strictly in favor of or 

against any party.  It shall be construed simply and fairly to each party.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

year and date first set forth above, and by so signing this Agreement, certify that they have been 

duly authorized by their respective entities to execute this Agreement on their behalf. 

 

VILLAGE: 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

Dane County, Wisconsin 

 

By       

David Benforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

 

 

DPPG, LLC: 

 

_________________________________ 



6 

 

 

By      ___ 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Name/Title 

 

MARSHALL COURT INVESTORS, LLC: 

 

_________________________________ 

 

 

By      ___ 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Name/Title 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Matthew P. Dregne 

Village Attorney 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

A – Map depicting Parcel A 

B - Description of DPPG Property Improvements 

C - Lodgic CSM 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT  C 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



Tri Party Agreement 

Village, Univ. Station, Marshall Court 

Summary of Main Elements 

November 1, 2018 

 

1. University Station obligations. 

 

A. Dedicate bike path to Village (see attached map). 

B. Grant temporary construction and permanent easement to Village (more bike 

path) (see attached map). 

C. Grant storm sewer easement to Village (see attached map). 

D. Convey land to Marshall Court (see attached map). 

E. Construction work within University Station parking lot. 

F. Provide title commitments associated with its conveyances. 

 

2. Marshall Court obligations. 

 

A. Dedicate bike path to Village (see attached map). 

B. Dedicate street right-of-way to Village (see attached map) 

C. Grant temporary storm sewer easement to Village. 

D. Convey land to University Station. (see attached map). 

E. Prepare and record CSM. 

F. Construction new storm sewer main. 

G. Provide title commitments associated with its conveyances. 

 

 

3. Village obligations. 

 

A. Convey remnant parcel to University Station (see attached map). 

B. Convey remnant parcel to Marshall Court (see attached map). 

C. Release storm sewer easement across Lodgic parcel. 

D. Provide title commitments associated with its conveyances. 

E. Contibute $14,000 to the cost of the new storm sewer main to be constructed 

by Marshall Court (estimated total cost $81,000). 

F. Pay University Station: 

(1) $111,200 for bike path dedication. 

(2) $32,480 for bike path easement. 

(3) $122,868 for parking lot, easement area and landscaping work. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 

 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A TRI-PARTY AGREEMENT 

(UNIVERSITY STATION, MARSHALL COURT INVESTORS) 
 

RECITAL 

The Village, University Station Limited Partnership, and Marshall Court Investors, LLC wish to 

accomplish certain conveyances and dedications in order to facilitate the redevelopment of certain 

land on Marshall Court, the construction of a public bike path and a public street, and various related 

projects. 

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills hereby resolves as 

follows: 

1. The Tri-Party Agreement attached as Attachment A (the “Agreement”) is approved. 

 

2. The Village President, Village Clerk, Village Administrator and Village Attorney are 

authorized to execute the Agreement and take all other actions needed to implement the 

Agreement. 

The above Resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the Village Board of the Village of 

Shorewood Hills on the _______ day of _____________________, 2018. 

APPROVED 

 

By _____________________________  

David Renforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST 

 

________________________________ 

Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

Attachment A – Tri-Party Agreement 



 ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

Tri-Party Agreement 

Village of Shorewood Hills, Lodgic and University Station 

 

 

This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of _______________, 2018 among the 

Village of Shorewood Hills, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “Village”), University 

Station Limited Partnership (“University Station”), a Wisconsin limited liability partnership, and 

Marshall Court Investors, LLC (“Marshall Court”), a Wisconsin limited liability company. 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Marshall Court is the owner of the real property located at 2801 Marshall Court, 

located in the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Marshall 

Court Property”). 

 

B. University Station is the owner of the real property known as the University Station 

Shopping Center located at 2840-2862 University Avenue, located in the Village of 

Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “University Station Property”). 

 

C. The Village is the owner of certain real property adjacent to or near the Marshall 

Court Property and the University Station Property (the “Village Property”).  
 

D. The Village has an easement interest in the Marshall Court Property for storm sewer 

purposes (the “Storm Sewer Easement”). 
 

E. The Village, University Station, and Marshall Court wish to accomplish certain 

conveyances and dedications in order to facilitate the redevelopment of the Marshall 

Court Property, the construction of a public bike path adjacent to the University 

Station Property and the Marshall Court Property, and the modification of the 

parking area serving the University Station Property. 
 

AGREEMENT 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein the parties 

agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The above recitals are material to and incorporated in this Agreement. 

2. Agreements to convey and dedicate property.   

a. Marshall Court hereby agrees to convey to University Station, and University 

Station agrees to accept, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, part 

of the Marshall Court Property described and depicted in Attachment A (“Parcel 



 3 

A” a/k/a “Land Swap Area 2”). The purchase price for Parcel A shall be $1.00 (the 

“Parcel A Purchase Price”). 

b. University Station hereby agrees to convey to Marshall Court, and Marshall Court 

agrees to accept, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, part of the 

University Station Property described and depicted in Attachment B (“Parcel B” 

a/k/a “Land Swap Area 1” and “Land Swap Area 3”). The purchase price for Parcel 

B shall be $1.00 (the “Parcel B Purchase Price”). 

c. The Village hereby agrees to convey to Marshall Court, and Marshall Court agrees 

to accept, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement: 

(i) part of the Village Property described and depicted in Attachment C 

(“Parcel C”); 

(ii) part of the Village Property described and depicted in Attachment D 

(“Parcel D”). 

The purchase price for Parcels C and D shall be $1.00 (the “Parcels C and D 

Purchase Price”).   

d. The Village hereby agrees to convey to University Station, and University Station 

agrees to accept, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, part of the 

Village Property described and depicted in Attachment E (“Parcel E”). The 

purchase price for Parcel E shall be $1.00 (the “Parcel E Purchase Price”). 

e. The Village hereby agrees to release the Storm Sewer Easement in accordance with 

the terms of this Agreement. 

f. Marshall Court agrees to prepare at its cost, and University Station and Marshall 

Court hereby agree to execute and record, a certified survey map (“CSM”) (after 

giving effect to the conveyances described in subparagraphs a-e above) in 

substantially the same form shown on Attachment F.  Among other things, the CSM 

dedicates certain lands to the Village for a bike path and certain lands to the Village 

for a public street. 

g. Part of the dedications to the public shown on Attachment F are currently owned 

by University Station (the “University Station Dedicated Land”) and part of such 

dedications are owned by Marshall Court (the “Marshall Court Dedicated Land” 

and together with the University Station Dedicated Land, the “Dedicated Land”). 

3. Conditions precedent to the conveyances of Parcels A-E and the recording of CSM.  The 

closing on the conveyances of Parcels A-E and the recording of the CSM are contingent 

upon the following: 

a. Parcel A:  Within twenty (20) days after the execution of this Agreement, Marshall 

Court shall provide to University Station a commitment for an owner’s title 

insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form) issued by a title insurance 



 4 

company (the “Title Company”) showing title to Parcel A as of a date no more than 

15 days before delivery of such title evidence to be merchantable and free from 

encumbrances, subject only to liens which will be paid at closing, naming 

University Station as the proposed owner-insured of Parcel A in the amount of the 

Parcel A Purchase Price (the “Parcel A Commitment”). University Station may 

obtain gap insurance coverage as part of its title insurance, to provide coverage for 

the period between the title insurance commitment and the Closing Date. University 

Station, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Parcel A Commitment, 

will make objections to the title to Parcel A based upon examination of the Parcel 

A Commitment, said objections to be made by written notice or be deemed waived. 

If any objections are so made, Marshall Court shall immediately commence and 

diligently endeavor in good faith to complete all actions necessary to cure such 

objections and shall be allowed up to the Closing Date to cure such objections and 

obtain appropriate endorsements to the Parcel A Commitment indicating that any 

such objections have been cured. University Station need not object to mortgages 

or other liens against Parcel A. If not sooner satisfied, Marshall Court shall satisfy 

all such mortgage or other liens at closing. If Marshall Court does not cure 

University Station’s objections by the Closing Date, or if title to Parcel A is not 

good and marketable of record in Marshall Court at the Closing Date, then 

University Station shall have the following options (which shall operate as 

University Station’s exclusive remedies for breach of this subparagraph): 

(i) University Station may terminate this Agreement, or 

(ii) University Station may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to 

Marshall Court’s interest in Parcel A in its unmarketable condition. 

b. Parcel B.  Within twenty (20) days after the execution of this Agreement, 

University Station shall provide to Marshall Court a commitment for an owner’s 

title insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form) issued by the Title Company 

showing title to Parcel B as of a date no more than fifteen (15) days before delivery 

of such title evidence to be merchantable and free from encumbrances, subject only 

to liens which will be paid at closing, naming Marshall Court as the proposed 

owner-insured of Parcel B in the amount of the Parcel B Purchase Price (the “Parcel 

B Commitment”). Marshall Court may obtain gap insurance coverage as part of its 

title insurance, to provide coverage for the period between the title insurance 

commitment and the Closing Date.  Marshall Court, within five (5) business days 

after receipt of the Parcel B Commitment, will make objections to the title to Parcel 

B based upon examination of the Parcel B Commitment, said objections to be made 

by written notice or be deemed waived. If any objections are so made, University 

Station shall immediately commence and diligently endeavor in good faith to 

complete all actions necessary to cure such objections and shall be allowed up to 

the Closing Date to cure such objections and obtain appropriate endorsements to 

the Parcel B Commitment indicating that any such objections have been cured. 

Marshall Court need not object to mortgages or other liens against Parcel B. If not 

sooner satisfied, University Station shall satisfy all such mortgages and other liens 

at closing. If University Station does not cure Marshall Court’s objections by the 



 5 

Closing Date, or if title to Parcel B is not good and marketable of record in 

University Station at the Closing Date, then Marshall Court shall have the following 

options (which shall operate as Marshall Court’s exclusive remedies for breach of 

this subparagraph): 

(i) Marshall Court may terminate this Agreement, or 

(ii) Marshall Court may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to 

University’s Station’s interest in Parcel B in its unmarketable condition. 

c. Parcels C and D. Within twenty (20) days after the execution of this Agreement, 

the Village shall provide to Marshall Court a commitment for an owner’s title 

insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form) issued by the Title Company 

showing title to Parcels C and D as of a date no more than fifteen (15) days before 

delivery of such title evidence to be merchantable and free from encumbrances, 

subject only to liens which will be paid at closing, naming Marshall Court as the 

proposed owner-insured of Parcels C and D in the amount of the Parcels C and D 

Purchase Price (the “Parcels C and D Commitment”). Marshall Court may obtain 

gap insurance coverage as part of its title insurance, to provide coverage for the 

period between the title insurance commitment and the Closing Date. Marshall 

Court, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Parcels C and D 

Commitment, will make objections to the title to Parcels C and D based upon 

examination of the Parcels C and D Commitment, said objections to be made by 

written notice or be deemed waived. If any objections are so made, the Village shall 

immediately commence and diligently endeavor in good faith to complete all 

actions necessary to cure such objections and shall be allowed up to the Closing 

Date to cure such objections and obtain appropriate endorsements to the Parcels C 

and D Commitment indicating that any such objections have been cured. Marshall 

Court need not object to mortgages or other liens against Parcels C and D. If not 

sooner satisfied, the Village shall satisfy all such mortgages or other liens at closing. 

If the Village does not cure Marshall Court’s objections by the Closing Date, or if 

title to Parcels C and D is not good and marketable of record in the Village at the 

Closing Date, then Marshall Court shall have the following options (which shall 

operate as Marshall Court’s exclusive remedies for breach of this subparagraph):  

(i) Marshall Court may terminate this Agreement, or 

(ii) Marshall Court may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to the 

Village’s interest in Parcels C and D in its unmarketable condition. 

d. Parcel E. Within twenty (20) days after the execution of this Agreement, the 

Village shall provide to University Station a commitment for an owner’s title 

insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form) issued by the Title Company 

showing title to Parcel E as of a date no more than 15 days before delivery of such 

title evidence to be merchantable and free from encumbrances, subject only to liens 

which will be paid at closing, naming University Station as the proposed owner-

insured of Parcel E in the amount of the Parcel E Purchase Price (the “Parcel E 



 6 

Commitment”). University Station may obtain gap insurance coverage as part of its 

title insurance, to provide coverage for the period between the title insurance 

commitment and the date of Closing. University Station, within five (5) business 

days after receipt of the Parcel E Commitment, will make objections to the title to 

Parcel E based upon examination of the Parcel E Commitment, said objections to 

be made by written notice or be deemed waived. If any objections are so made, the 

Village shall immediately commence and diligently endeavor in good faith to 

complete all actions necessary to cure such objections and shall be allowed up to 

the Closing Date to cure such objections and obtain appropriate endorsements to 

the Parcel E Commitment indicating that any such objections have been cured. 

University Station need not object to mortgages or other liens against Parcel E. If 

not sooner satisfied, the Village shall satisfy all such mortgages or other liens at 

closing. If the Village does not cure University Station’s objections by the Closing 

Date, or if title to Parcel E is not good and marketable of record in the Village at 

the Closing Date, then University Station shall have the following options (which 

shall operate as University Station’s exclusive remedies for breach of this 

subparagraph): 

(i) University Station may terminate this Agreement, or 

(ii) University Station may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to 

the Village’s interest in Parcel E in its unmarketable condition. 

e. Dedicated Land. Within twenty (20) days after the execution of this Agreement, 

University Station and Marshall Court shall provide to the Village a commitment 

for an owner’s title insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form) issued by the 

Title Company showing title to the Dedicated Land to be as of a date no more than 

fifteen (15) days before recording of the CSM to be merchantable and free from 

encumbrances, subject only to liens which will be paid at closing, naming the 

Village as the proposed owner-insured of the Dedicated Land in an amount to be 

determined by the Village (the “Dedicated Land Commitment”). The Village may 

obtain gap insurance coverage as part of its title insurance, to provide coverage for 

the period between the title insurance commitment and the Closing Date. The 

Village, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Dedicated Land 

Commitment, will make objections to the title to the Dedicated Land based upon 

examination of the Dedicated Land Commitment, said objections to be made by 

written notice or be deemed waived. If any objections are so made, University 

Station and Marshall Court shall immediately commence and diligently endeavor 

in good faith to complete all actions necessary to cure such objections and shall be 

allowed up to the Closing Date to cure such objections and obtain appropriate 

endorsements to the Dedicated Land Commitment indicating that any such 

objections have been cured. The Village need not object to mortgages or other liens 

against the Dedicated Land. If not sooner satisfied, University Station and Marshall 

Court shall satisfy all such mortgages and other liens at closing. If University 

Station and Marshall Court do not cure the Village’s objections by the Closing 

Date, or if title to the Dedicated Land is not good and marketable of record in 

University Station and Marshall Court at the Closing Date, then the Village shall 



 7 

have the following options (which shall operate as the Village’s exclusive remedies 

for breach of this subparagraph):  

(i) The Village may terminate this Agreement, or 

(ii) The Village may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to 

University Station’s interest in the University Station Dedicated Land or 

Marshall Court’s interest in the Marshall Court Dedicated Land in its 

unmarketable condition. 

4. Conditions precedent to recording the CSM. The recording of the CSM is contingent upon 

the following:  

a. Completion of the conveyances of Parcels A through E pursuant to this Agreement. 

b. Delivery and execution of the Temporary Construction and Permanent Right-of-

Way Easement described in paragraph 10 hereof. 

c. Approval of the CSM by the Village of Shorewood Hills Village Board. 

d. If any of these conditions is not satisfied, by the Closing Date, then any party may 

terminate this Agreement. 

5. Closing.  The closing shall take place not later than November 30, 2018 (the “Closing 

Date”). The closing shall take place at the offices of the Title Company or such other place 

as the parties shall mutually agree. At the closing:   

a. Marshall Court shall deliver to University Station: 

(i) A Quit Claim Deed properly executed on behalf of Marshall Court in 

recordable form conveying Parcel A to University Station and in the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

(ii) All certificates, instruments and other documents necessary to permit the 

recording of the Quit Claim Deed. 

(iii) A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, 

encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly 

executed on behalf of Marshall Court. 

(iv) A “marked-up” Parcel A Commitment (initialed by the appropriate Title 

Company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no exceptions 

except those to which University Station has not objected or has expressly 

agreed to pursuant to Section 3.a. hereof.   



 8 

(v) Unless waived by Marshall Court and University Station, a HUD-1 or 

similar closing statements prepared by the Title Company, properly 

executed. 

b. University Station shall deliver to Marshall Court: 

(i) A Quit Claim Deed properly executed on behalf of University Station in 

recordable form conveying Parcel B to Marshall Court and in the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

(ii) All certificates, instruments and other documents necessary to permit the 

recording of the Quit Claim Deed. 

(iii) A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, 

encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly 

executed on behalf of University Station. 

(iv) A “marked-up” Parcel B Commitment (initialed by the appropriate Title 

Company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no exceptions 

except those to which Marshall Court has not objected or has expressly 

agreed to pursuant to Section 3.b. hereof.  

(v) Unless waived by University Station and Marshall Court, HUD-1 or similar 

closing statements prepared by the Title, properly executed. 

c. The Village shall deliver to Marshall Court: 

(i) A Quit Claim Deed properly executed on behalf of the Village in recordable 

form conveying Parcel C and D to Marshall Court in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit 3. 

(ii) A release of Storm Sewer Easement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

6. 

(iii) All certificates, instruments and other documents necessary to permit the 

recording of the Quit Claim Deed. 

(iv) A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, 

encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly 

executed on behalf of the Village. 

(v) A “marked-up” Parcels C and D Commitment (initialed by the appropriate 

Title Company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no 

exceptions except those to which Marshall Court has not objected or has 

expressly agreed to pursuant to Section 3.c. hereof.  



 9 

(vi) Unless waived by the Village and Marshall Court, a HUD-1 or similar 

closing statements prepared by the Title Company, properly executed. 

d. The Village shall deliver to University Station:  

(i) A Quit Claim Deed properly executed on behalf of the Village in recordable 

form conveying Parcel E to University Station in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit 4. 

(ii) All certificates, instruments and other documents necessary to permit the 

recording of the Quit Claim Deed. 

(iii) A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, 

encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly 

executed on behalf of the Village. 

(iv) A “marked-up” Parcel E Commitment (initialed by the appropriate Title 

Company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no exceptions 

except those to which University Station has not objected or has expressly 

agreed to pursuant to Section 3.d. hereof.  

(v) Unless waived by the Village and University Station, a HUD-1 or similar 

closing statements prepared by the Title Company, properly executed. 

e. University Station and Marshall Court shall deliver to the Village:  

(i) A “marked-up” Dedicated Land Commitment (initialed by the appropriate 

title company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no 

exceptions except those to which the Village has not objected or has 

expressly agreed to pursuant to Section 3.e. hereof.  

(ii) A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies, tax 

liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests, 

encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly 

executed on behalf of University Station and Marshall Court with respect 

to the Dedicated Land. 

f. University Station shall deliver to the Village:   

(i) The Temporary Construction and Permanent Easement Agreement 

described in Section 10 of this Agreement, properly executed on behalf of 

University Station and Park Bank. 

(ii) A Storm Sewer Easement in the form attached as Exhibit 7, properly 

executed on behalf of University Station and Park Bank.  



 10 

6. Certified Survey Map. As soon as is practicable after the conditions in Section 4 of this 

Agreement have been satisfied, Marshall Court shall prepare and seek Village approval of 

the CSM, and Marshall Court and University Station shall execute and record the CSM. If 

the conditions in Section 4 of this Agreement are not satisfied by November 30, 2018, the 

obligation to record the CSM shall terminate.  

7. Title, transfer taxes and recording fees.  Marshall Court shall pay the title insurance, real 

estate transfer tax and recording costs associated with the conveyance of Parcels A, C and 

D and shall pay the cost of recording the CSM.  University Station shall pay the title 

insurance, real estate transfer tax and recording costs associated with the conveyance of 

Parcels B. The Village shall pay the title insurance, real estate transfer tax and recording 

costs associated with the conveyance of Parcel E.  

8. Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments.  Real estate taxes due and payable for all years 

prior to that in which Closing occurs, including any amounts otherwise payable for such 

years which may have been deferred pursuant to applicable law, and real estate taxes due 

and payable for the year in which closing occurs, shall be paid by Marshall Court as to 

Parcel A and the Marshall Court Dedicated Land, and University Station as to Parcel B and 

the University Station Dedicated Land.    Marshall Court shall pay any special assessments 

levied or pending as of the Closing Date for Parcel A and the Marshall Court Dedicated 

Land, including, but not limited to, (i) installments, if any, which appear on the property 

tax statements for the year in which the closing occurs and (ii) any installments which may 

have been deferred pursuant to applicable laws.  University Station shall pay any special 

assessments levied or pending as of the Closing Date for Parcel B and the University 

Station Dedicated Land, including, but not limited to, (i) installments, if any, which appear 

on the property tax statements for the year in which the closing occurs and (ii) any 

installments which may have been deferred pursuant to applicable laws. 

 

9. Village payment to University Station for bike path dedication. On the later of (i) 

January 20, 2019, or (ii) fifteen (15) days after the CSM has been recorded with the 

Register of Deeds pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement, the Village shall pay 

$111,200.00 to University Station as consideration for University Station’s 

dedication of the University Station Dedicated Land to the Village for bike path 

purposes, pursuant to the CSM.   
 

10. University Station grant to Village of a temporary construction and a permanent 

right-of-way easement and a storm sewer easement. University Station shall grant 

to the Village a Temporary Construction and Permanent Right-of-Way Easement in 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit 5.  The Village shall pay $32,480.00 to 

University Station as consideration for the Permanent Easement.  The Village’s 

payment to University Station shall be due on the later of (i) January 20, 2019, or 

(ii) 15 days after the execution in full of the Temporary Construction and Permanent 

Right-of-Way Easement.  University Station shall also grant to the Village a Storm 

Sewer Easement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 7. 
 



 11 

11. Village reimbursement to University Station for parking lot work. Following the 

recording of the CSM, University Station shall construct and complete various 

improvements to its property as described on Attachment G (the “University Station 

Work”).  University Station shall be responsible for construction management and 

traffic control during the University Station Work.  Upon completion of the 

University Station Work, and delivery to the Village of documentation, in form, 

substance and detail satisfactory to the Village, demonstrating the final cost of the 

University Station Work, the Village shall reimburse University Station for the Cost 

of the University Station Work as follows: 
 

a. Reimbursement for the actual cost of the University Station Work up to a 

maximum total reimbursement of $85,810.00.  

 

b. Reimbursement for the cost of construction management and traffic control 

during the University Station Work equal to ten (10%) percent of the cost of 

the University Station Work, up to a maximum total reimbursement for 

construction management and traffic control of $8,581.00. 

 

c. Reimbursement for the cost of removing existing landscaping in connection 

with the University Station Work, up to a maximum total reimbursement for 

landscaping removal of $4,810.00. 
 

d. Reimbursement for the cost of work associated with the Permanent Easement 

Area (as described in the easement described in paragraph 10 herein) at the 

southwest corner of the University Station Property which work includes 

removing an existing curb and gutter, installing a new curb and gutter, and 

adding a new center area island at the west side of such property up to and 

not exceeding $23,667.00.  
 

The Village’s payment to University Station pursuant to this section shall be due on 

the later of (i) January 20, 2019, or (ii) 30 days after University Station delivers 

satisfactory documentation demonstrating the final cost of the University Station 

Work. 
 

12. Construction of Storm Sewer Main.   

 

a. Marshall Court shall construct and install a public storm sewer main and 

related appurtenances (the “Storm Sewer Improvements”), as generally 

depicted on Attachment H as the “PROPOSED 36” RCP STORM SEWER.”  

The Storm Sewer Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with 

detailed construction plans and specifications, and a construction schedule, 

approved by the Village Engineer.   

 



 12 

b. Before commencing work on the Storm Sewer Improvements, Marshall 

Court shall require the contractor constructing the Storm Sewer 

Improvements to have the Village, University Station, Flad Development & 

Investment Corp., John Flad and Park Bank named as additional insured 

parties on a commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of not 

less than $5,000,000.00, which amount may be satisfied in part by an 

umbrella policy. Marshall Court shall provide a certificate of insurance and 

endorsement to the Village demonstrating compliance with this section. 
 

c. The Storm Sewer Improvements shall be completed by not later than May 

31, 2019. 
 

d. After the Storm Sewer Improvements are completed, and within 21 days after 

receiving written notice that Marshall Court desires the Village to inspect 

such Improvements, the Village Engineer shall inspect the Improvements 

and, if acceptable to the Village Engineer, the Village Board shall by 

resolution certify such Improvements as being in compliance with the 

standards and specifications of the Village, and accept the Storm Sewer 

Improvements.  Before obtaining certification of the Improvements, the 

Developer shall:  (1) present to the Village and to University Station valid 

lien waivers from all persons providing materials or performing work on the 

Improvements for which certification is sought; (2) provide as built drawings 

to the Village Engineer consisting of four hard copies on paper; (3) provide 

to the Village all information regarding such Improvements that the Village 

requests to comply with GASB 34.  Marshall Court agrees to provide for 

maintenance and repair of the Storm Sewer Improvements until such 

Improvements are formally accepted by the Village.  The Village shall 

provide notice to Marshall Court whenever inspection reveals that the work 

does not conform to the required standards and specifications or is otherwise 

defective.  Marshall Court shall have 30 days from the issuance of such notice 

to cure the defect.  The Village shall provide written notice to Marshall Court 

of defects or nonconformities within 15 days after the Village has actual 

knowledge of the defect or nonconformity. 

 

e. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, Marshall Court shall pay the 

full cost of constructing the Storm Sewer Improvements.  After the Village 

accepts the Storm Sewer Improvements, the Village shall pay $14,000.00 to 

Marshall Court. 
 

f. Marshall Court agrees to guarantee and warrant all work performed in 

constructing the Storm Sewer Improvements for a period of one year from 

the date the Village accepts the Storm Sewer Improvements (the “Guarantee 

Period”) against defects in workmanship or materials.  If written notice of 



 13 

defective work is given to Marshall Court during the Guarantee Period, 

Marshall Court agrees to make required replacement or acceptable repairs of 

the defective work at its own expense, including total and complete 

restoration of any disturbed surface or component of the Improvements on 

lands where the repairs or replacement is required, to the standard provided 

in the approved plans and specifications.  All guarantees or warranties for 

materials or workmanship that extend beyond the above Guarantee Period 

shall be assigned by Marshall Court to the Village. 

13. Notices.  All documents to be delivered and all correspondence and notices to be given in 

connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and given by personal delivery, by 

email, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier or by registered or certified 

mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 

 University Station: University Station Limited Partnership 

    Attention: John J. Flad 

3330 University Avenue, Suite 206 

Madison, WI 53705-2167 

Email: jflad@flad-development.com 

 

Marshall Court: Rich Arnesen 

    Stone House Development, Inc. 

    625 North Segoe Road 

    Madison, WI  53705 

    rarnesen@stonehousedevelopment.com 

     

With a copy to: Jenifer Kraemer 

    von Briesen & Roper, S.C. 

    10 East Doty Street, Suite 900 

    Madison, WI  53703 

    Phone:  (608) 310-3608 

    Email:   jkraemer@vonbriesen.com 

 



 14 

The Village:  Karl Frantz, Village Administrator 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

810 Shorewood Blvd. 

Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone:  (608) 267-2680 

Email:  kpfrantz@shorewood-hills.org 

 

With a copy to: Matthew P. Dregne 

Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900 

P.O. Box 1784 

Madison, WI 53701-1784 

Phone:  (608) 259-2618 

Email:  mdregne@staffordlaw.com 

 

 A notice delivered personally shall be delivered personally to the person whose attention 

mailed notices are addressed.  A notice sent by email shall be deemed given to the party 

to whom it is sent on the date actually transmitted.  A notice sent by mail shall be deemed 

to have been given to the party to whom it is addressed on the date the same is deposited 

in the United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 

properly addressed to such party at its then current address for the giving of notices.  Any 

party hereto may change such party’s address for the service of notice hereunder by 

written notice of said change to the other parties hereto, in the manner above specified ten 

(10) days prior to the effective date of said change. 

14. Commissions.  Marshall Court, University Station and the Village hereby each warrant that 

they have no broker in connection with the transactions described in this Agreement.  

15. Default. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 3, should any party default in the 

performance of its obligations hereunder or breach any warranty contained herein, and such 

default shall not be cured within ten (10) days after notice from another party, the non-

defaulting parties shall have and may pursue all rights and remedies available to them 

hereunder, at law or in equity, or otherwise, including, but not limited to, an action for 

damages or specific performance. 

16. Risk of Loss.  Risk of loss prior to the time of closing shall remain in Marshall Court as to 

Parcel A, University Station as to Parcel B and the Village as to Parcels C, D and E.   

 

17. Miscellaneous.  All of the covenants, warranties, and provisions of this Agreement shall 

survive and be enforceable after the closing of this transaction.  The paragraph headings or 

captions appearing in this Agreement are for convenience only, are not a part of this 

Agreement, and are not to be considered in interpreting this Agreement.  Delivery of an 

executed copy of this Agreement by facsimile or email shall be deemed delivery of the 

executed original.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 

18. Time of the Essence.  Except as otherwise stated herein, time is of the essence in the 

performance of this Agreement. 



 15 

 

19. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

 

20. Further Assurances. The parties agree (a) to furnish upon request to each other such further 

information, (b) to execute and deliver such other documents, and (c) to do such other acts 

and things, all as another party may reasonably request for the purpose of carrying out the 

intent of this Agreement, each conveyance and dedication described herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first set forth above. 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills,  

a Wisconsin municipal corporation 

 

By _______________________________  

 Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

By _______________________________  

 Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

 

 

  



 16 

 

University Station Limited Partnership,  

a Wisconsin limited liability partnership  

By: Flad Development & Investment Corp., Its General 

Partner 

 

 

By: _____________________________ 

John J. Flad, President 

 

 

 

Marshall Court Investors LLC,  

a Wisconsin limited liability company 

 

 

By: _______________________________  

 

 

 

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE 

 

Park Bank, being the holder of a mortgage against the Property, consents to the grant of the 

permanent easement, and agrees that its mortgage interest in the easement area is subordinate to the 

permanent easement.   

 

 Dated:  ___________, 2018. 

Park Bank 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

 

 

  



 17 

 

 

Attachment A - Legal description of Parcel A 

Attachment B - Legal description of Parcel B 

Attachment C - Legal description of Parcel C 

Attachment D – Legal description of Parcel D 

Attachment E – Legal description of Parcel E 

Attachment F - Form of certified survey map 

Attachment G - Joe Daniels Construction Proposal 

Attachment H – Utility Plan for Storm Sewer Improvements 

 

Exhibit 1 – Quit Claim Deed (Parcel A) 

Exhibit 2 – Quit Claim Deed (Parcel B) 

Exhibit 3 – Quit Claim Deed (Parcels C and D) 

Exhibit 4 – Quit Claim Deed (Parcel E) 

Exhibit 5 – Temporary Construction and Permanent Easement Agreement 

Exhibit 6 – Partial Release of Storm Sewer Easement  

Exhibit 7 – Storm Sewer Easement 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Tri-Party Agreement 

ATTACHMENT F  

 



 

  



 

 

 



 

  



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

  



 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

Tri-Party Agreement 

ATTACHMENT H 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 Tri-Party Agreement 

 EXHIBIT 5 

 

 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND PERMANENT 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 This Temporary Construction and Permanent Easement 

Agreement (“Agreement”) dated this _____ day of 

________________, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), is between 

University Station Limited Partnership, a Wisconsin limited 

partnership (“University Station”) and the Village of Shorewood 

Hills, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “Village”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. University Station owns property located at 2840-2862 

University Avenue in the Village of Shorewood Hills, 

Dane County, Wisconsin as more particularly described on 

Exhibit A (the “University Station Property”); and 

 

B. The Village owns certain property between the University 

Station Property and University Avenue (the “Village 

Property”) which the Village intends to improve into a 

multi-use path with all necessary or related underground and aboveground associated 

improvements, facilities, accessories, amenities and appurtenances (the “Improvements”); 

and 

 

C. University Station is willing to grant a temporary construction easement over, upon and 

across the portion of the University Station Property shown on Exhibit B to this Agreement 

(the “Temporary Easement Area”), for the purposes and on the terms and conditions 

described in this Agreement. 

 

D. University Station is also willing to grant a permanent, exclusive right-of-way easement 

over, under and across the portion of the Property shown on Exhibits C and D to this 

Agreement (the “Permanent Easement Area”), for the purposes and on the terms and 

conditions described in this Agreement. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the declarations herein and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

University Station and the Village agree as follows: 

 

1. Temporary Construction Easement. University Station grants to the Village a temporary, 

nonexclusive easement (the “Temporary Construction Easement”) over, upon and across 

the Temporary Easement Area, for the purpose of ingress and egress in connection with 

the initial construction and installation of the Improvements and other construction 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Village of Shorewood Hills  

810 Shorewood Blvd. 

Madison, WI 53705 

 

 

 

 

 

P.I.N. 

 

 



 

 

purposes reasonably related to the initial construction of the Improvements in the 

Permanent Easement Area and in Village Property.  University Station also grants the 

Village a temporary, nonexclusive easement over, upon, and across the Temporary 

Easement Area for the purpose of allowing the Village’s agents, officers, employees, and 

contractors to access and have ingress and egress to the Village Property by foot or by 

motorized vehicles, including heavy construction equipment. Village agrees to consult with 

University Station and obtain University Station’s recommendations with respect to 

scheduling the initial construction and installation of Improvements in the Permanent 

Easement Area and in the Village Property to minimize the disruption to the use or 

enjoyment of any part of the University Station Property by University Station or its 

tenants. 

 

2. Permanent Right-of-Way Easement. University Station grants to the Village, a permanent, 

exclusive easement (the “Permanent Easement”) over, under, in, along, upon and across 

the Permanent Easement Area for the construction, installation, maintenance, operation, 

repair, replacement and use of the Improvements and for access to the Village Property. 

 

3. Term/Termination of the Temporary Construction Easement.  The term of the Temporary 

Construction Easement shall commence on the Effective Date and terminate upon the 

earlier of (a) the date construction of the Improvements is complete or (b) December 31, 

2019, provided, however that the term of the Temporary Construction Easement shall be 

extended for a reasonable time if the Village is delayed at any time in the commencement 

or progress of the work of the Improvements by an act or neglect of University Station or 

by other causes beyond the Village’s control. 

 

4. Term/Termination of the Permanent Easement. The Permanent Easement shall commence 

on the Effective Date and shall run with the land and continue in full force and effect for 

the benefit of the Village, its successors and assigns. The Permanent Easement shall be 

terminated only by action of the Village. 

 

5. Insurance. The Village shall maintain in effect at all times during the term of the 
Temporary Construction Easement and the Permanent Easement, a policy of 
commercial general liability insurance naming University Station, Flad 
Development & Investment Corp., John Flad and Park Bank as additional 
insureds, with limits of not less than _______________ .  A certificate of such insurance 

acceptable to University Station shall be provided to University Station prior to the 

commencement of the work of the Improvements and thereafter upon renewal or replacement 

of such required policy upon request by University Station. Within three (3) business days 
of the date the Village becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or 
expiration of such insurance, the Village shall provide notice to University Station 
of such impending or actual cancellation or expiration.  
  

6. Restrictions on University Station.  During the term of the Temporary Construction 

Easement, University Station shall not take any action or permit others to take any action 

that interferes with or is inconsistent with the Village's rights under this Agreement in and 



 

 

to the Temporary Construction Easement Area. During the term of the Permanent 

Easement, University Station shall not take any action or permit others to take any action 

that interferes with or is inconsistent with the Village's rights under this Agreement in and 

to  the Permanent Easement Area, and University Station shall not take any action that 

impairs or impedes the use of the Permanent Easement Area as public right-of-way.  

 

7. University Station Obligations.  Except as otherwise provided herein, University Station 

shall have no obligations or liability for the condition of the Permanent Easement Area or 

improvements thereon from and after the date of recording hereof, except that University 

Station is subject to all local and state laws and regulations applicable to public rights-of-

way and the use thereof. 

 

8. Village Obligations. The Village shall construct the Improvements in a workmanlike 

manner and be responsible to grade or otherwise maintain, and to repair, replace and 

reconstruct the surface of the Permanent Easement Area for use as a multi-use path and all 

necessary underground and aboveground associated improvements, facilities, accessories 

and appurtenances all in a workmanlike manner and on an ongoing basis. The Village shall 

not erect or maintain any structure or obstruction in the Permanent Easement Area that 

unnecessarily and significantly obstructs views to the University Station Property without 

first obtaining permission from University Station. 

 

9. Fencing. The Village may install and replace fencing on the Village Property. Fencing 

installed within Village Property that abuts the University Station Property shall be (a) of 

the Black Vail Ornamental type described on Exhibit E, or (b) of a type and value that is 

visually equivalent as determined by University Station in its reasonable discretion.   

 

10. Binding Effect and Assignability.  The Temporary Construction Easement and Permanent 

Easement granted by this document shall run with the lands described herein, is binding 

upon the successors and assigns of University Station, and shall benefit the Village, its 

successors and assigns.  

 

11. University Station Warranty. University Station represents and warrants that, excepting a 

mortgage interest held by Park Bank, it is the sole owner of the property described herein, 

and that no other deed, mortgage or easement prohibits Grantor from conveying, granting, 

transferring, or assigning to the Village the easement rights granted under this Agreement. 

University Station warrants that its execution and delivery of this Agreement have been 

duly authorized by University Station, and do not violate, conflict with, or constitute a 

default under any agreement or instrument binding upon University Station. 

 

12. Non-Use.  Non-use or limited use of the rights granted in this Agreement shall not prevent 

the benefited party from later use of the rights to the fullest extent authorized in this 

Agreement. 

 

13. Relocation. University Station reserves the right to extend that portion of the Permanent 

Easement Area that abuts Marshall Court, to a mutually agreeable location north of its 



 

 

current northerly terminus, not to exceed thirty feet north of the northern end of the 

Permanent Easement Area depicted on Exhibit marked “D”, so that the multi-use path is 

brought into the intersection with Marshall Court to function like a crosswalk connecting 

to the path on the west side of Marshall Court, provided that University Station pays all 

costs of any such relocation or reconfiguration of the Improvements and constructs the 

same in a workmanlike manner according to as-built plans approved by the Village prior 

to commencement of the work and provides a new easement whereupon the Parties agree 

that this Agreement shall be terminated or amended and the applicable areas released; 

provided, however, any new easement executed pursuant to this paragraph, shall otherwise 

contain the same terms and conditions provided hereunder. 

 

14. Notices.   Any notice, request, or change required or permitted under this Agreement shall 

be in writing and shall be deemed given when emailed or personally served or three (3) 

days after the same has been deposited with the United States Post Office registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

 

  If to Village:   Village of Shorewood Hills 

      Attn: Karl Frantz, Village Administrator 

 810 Shorewood Blvd. 

      Madison, WI 53705-2115 

      Email: kpfrantz@shorewood-hills.org 

     

 

  If to University Station: University Station Limited Partnership 

      Attention: John J. Flad 

 3330 University Avenue, Suite 206 

 Madison, WI 53705-2167 

 Email: jflad@flad-development.com 

 

15. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

 

16. Amendments for Further Agreements to be in Writing. This Agreement may not be 

modified in whole or in part unless such agreement is in writing and signed by all parties 

bound hereby. 

 

17. Waiver.  No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or power arising out of 

any default under any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be construed as a 

waiver of the right or power.  A waiver by a party of any of the obligations of the other 

party shall not be construed to be a waiver of any breach or any other terms or conditions 

of this Agreement. 

 

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 



 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals as of the dates 

noted below. 

 

 

      VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILS 

 

 

      By________________________________ 

           Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

 

      By________________________________ 

           Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  

     

COUNTY OF DANE  

 

 Personally, came before me this ____ day of _______________, 2018 the above named 

Dave Benforado and Karla Endres, to me known to be the Village President and Village Clerk of 

the Village of Shorewood Hills, and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 

acknowledged the same. 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin 

      My Commission:____________________ 

 

 

  



 

 

UNIVERSITY STATION LIMITED 

PARTNERSHIP 

By: Flad Development & Investment Corp., Its 

General Partner 

 

 

      By: _____________________________ 

       John J. Flad, President 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

     

COUNTY OF DANE ) 

 

 Personally, came before me this ____ day of _______________, 2018 the above named 

John J. Flad, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and 

acknowledged the same on behalf of Flad Development & Investment Corp., as general partner 

of University Station Limited Partnership. 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin 

      My Commission:     

 

 



 

 

CONSENT OF LIENHOLDER AND MORTGAGE SUBORDINATION 

 

For value received and to induce the Village to construct certain public improvements, 

Park Bank (“Lienholder”), as holder of a Mortgage, hereby consents to the execution and 

delivery of the foregoing Temporary Construction and Permanent Easement Agreement by the 

Owner, and hereby subordinates its Mortgage (and any other liens that it may obtain with respect 

to the Property) to the Storm Sewer Easement Agreement.  Lienholder acknowledges that the 

Village is relying on the consent of Lienholder and Lienholder’s agreement to subordinate its 

Mortgage to the Easement.  Lienholder acknowledges that the execution and delivery of the 

Storm Sewer Easement Agreement by Owner is in Lienholder’s best interest. Lienholder’s 

agreement to consent to the Easement is binding on the assigns and successors of Lienholder.   

 

LIENHOLDER: 

____________________________________ 

 

By _________________________________ 

Its _________________________________ 

 

By _________________________________ 

Its _________________________________ 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

 

COUNTY OF ____________ 

 

 Personally came before me, this _______ day of _____________, 2018, the above-named 

________________________ and _______________________ of _______________________, 

known to me to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the 

same, on behalf of _________________________. 

 

       

Print name:       

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My Commission     

 

 

 

  



 

 

Attachments 

A: Legal Description of Property 

B: Map of Temporary Easement Area 

C: Map of Permanent Easement Area 

D: Legal Description of Permanent Easement Area 

E: Fence Specifications 

 

 

This instrument drafted by and to be returned to: 

Matthew P. Dregne 

Stafford Rosenbaum LLP  

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900  

P.O. Box 1784  

Madison, WI  53701-1784 

 

  



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

University Station Property  

 

 

Lot 1, Certified Survey Map 5477, as recorded in Volume 25 of certified survey maps, on pages 

43-44, as Document No. 2067153, Dane County Register of Deeds, located in the Village of 

Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin. 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Permanent Easement Area - Map  
 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT D 

Permanent Easement Area – Legal Description 

 

 

A variable width easement to the Village of Shorewood Hills for bike path purposes over, under, 

and across part of Lot 1, Certified Survey Map Number 5477, as recorded in Volume 25 of 

Certified Survey Maps, on Pages 43-44, as Document Number 2067153, Dane County Registry, 

located in the NE ¼ - NW ¼ of Section 21, Township 07 North, Range 09 East, Village of 

Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, being more fully described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Lot 1; thence S72°17’17”E along the South line of 

said Lot 1, 10.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence N17°42’43”E, 26.05 feet; thence 

N10°00’27”W, 42.35 feet to the West line of said Lot 1; thence N00°11’41”E along the West 

line of said Lot 1, 10.76 feet; thence S89°52’28”E, 9.76 feet; thence S07°45’03”E, 53.50 feet; 

thence S16°43’57”W, 28.45 feet to the South line of said Lot 1; thence N72°17’17”W along the 

South line of said Lot 1, 9.86 feet to the point of beginning.  Said description containing 812 

square feet, more or less. 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Fence Specifications 

 

 



 Tri-Party Agreement 

 EXHIBIT 6 

 

 

PARTIAL EASEMENT RELEASE 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Village of Shorewood Hills (“Village”) holds a storm 

sewer easement as provided in that certain Storm Sewer 

Easement dated July 18, 1967 and recorded in the office 

of the Dane County Register of Deeds beginning on 

Volume 468 page 435 as attached as Exhibit C (“Existing 

Easement”).  

B. Among other property, the Existing Easement burdens the 

property commonly known as 2801 Marshall Court, and 

legally described on Exhibit A, located in the Village of 

Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin (the 

“Property”).  The Property is owned by Marshall Court 

Investors, LLC (the “Owner”).  

C. The storm sewer located within the Property is to be 

relocated and new easements for the relocated sewer will 

be dedicated to the Village. 

D. The Village and the Owner have agreed to the following terms for release of the Existing 

Easement over the Property.  

AGREEMENT 

 Therefore, the Village and the Owner agree as follows:  

1. Partial Release of Existing Easement. In consideration of the relocation of the 

storm sewer and receipt of the new easement, the Village hereby releases that portion of the 

Existing Easement that is legally described as follows:  

(b) Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest quarter (¼) of said 

Section 21; thence N89°30’W 983.50 ft.; thence S1°12’W 122.1 ft. to the 

northerly right-of-way line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific 

Railroad and the point of beginning of this description; thence N1°12’E 14.0 ft.; 

thence southeasterly to a point which is 31.0 ft. and S72°13’E from the point of 

beginning and located on the northerly right-of-way line of said railroad; thence 

S72°13’E 10.0 ft.; thence northwesterly to a point which is 24.0 ft. and N1°12’W 

from the said point of beginning; thence S1°12’W 10.0 ft.; intending to describe 

a 10 foot easement.  

(the “Released Easement Area”). 

 

2. Temporary Easement.  Owner hereby grants to the Village a temporary easement 

for the continuing use and maintenance of an existing storm sewer main.  The temporary easement 

area is depicted on Exhibit B.  The temporary easement will terminate upon the sooner of (1) the 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 

RETURN TO: 

Matthew P. Dregne 

Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 

P.O. Box 1784 

Madison,  WI  53701-1784 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P.I.N. 

181/0709-212-8090-8 



 

 

completion of construction of a new storm sewer main, described on Exhibit D as “PROPOSED 

36” RCP STORM SEWER, OR (2) DECEMBER 31, 2019. 

3. Termination.  At such time as the Temporary Easement terminates pursuant to this 

agreement, the Owner accepts ownership of and responsibility for the existing sewer main and 

appurtenances in the Released Easement Area and fully releases the Village from further 

responsibility therefor, and is free to remove or relocate the abandoned facilities at its expense.  

4. This Partial Easement Release is a covenant running with the land and shall be 

binding on the Village, and the Owner and their successors and assigns.  

[Signature pages follow.] 



 

 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS: 
A Wisconsin municipal corporation 

 

 

      By________________________________ 

           Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

 

      By________________________________ 

           Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

     

COUNTY OF DANE 

 

 Personally, came before me this ____ day of _______________, 2018 the above named 

Dave Benforado and Karla Endres, to me known to be the Village President and Village Clerk 

of the Village of Shorewood Hills, and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 

acknowledged the same. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________ 

Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin 

My Commission:____________________ 

 

 

 

  



 

 

MARSHALL COURT INVESTORS, LLC  

 

 

By _____________________________   Date: _______________, 2018.  

Print Name ______________________  

Title ___________________________  

 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

 

COUNTY OF DANE 

 

Personally came before me this _______ day of _______________, 2018, the above-named 

___________________________ to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

 

      

Print Name ____________________ 

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My Commission expires:     

 

 

 

Attachments 

A: Description of Temporary Easement Area 

B: Map of Temporary Easement Area 

C: Existing Easement 

D: Utility Plan for New Storm Sewer Main 

 

 

 

This instrument drafted by and to be returned to: 

Matthew P. Dregne 

Stafford Rosenbaum LLP  

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900  

P.O. Box 1784  

Madison, WI  53701-1784 



 

 

EXHIBIT  A 
 

Legal Description  

 

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NE1/4 NW1/4) of Section Twenty-One 

(21); Township Seven (7) North, Range Nine (9) East, in the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane 

County, Wisconsin, described as follows:  Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest 

1/4 of Section 21; thence North 89º30´ West, 660.95 feet to the point of beginning of this 

description; thence continue North 89º30´ West, 322.55 feet; thence South 1º12´ West, 122.1 

feet to the Northerly line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific Railroad right-of-

way; thence South 72º13´ East along said Railroad right-of-way, 270.3 feet; thence North 

17º47´ East, 212.7 feet to the point of beginning.  Except that part conveyed in Volume 841 of 

Deeds, Page 26, as Document No. 1195382; and that part conveyed in Volume 839 of Deeds, 

Page 561, as Document No. 1193626; and that part conveyed in Volume 839 of Deeds, Page 

564, as Document No. 1193628; and that part conveyed in Volume 10765 of Records, Page 16, 

as Document No. 2052269; and that part conveyed in Volume 12015 of Records, Page 61, as 

Document No. 2106621.   



 

 

EXHIBIT  B 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT  C 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT  D 



 Tri-Party Agreement 

 EXHIBIT 7 

 

 

 

STORM SEWER EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 In consideration of One Dollar, and the mutual 

obligations set forth in this Easement Agreement, University 

Station Limited Partnership (“Grantor”) does hereby convey, 

grant, transfer and assign to the Village of Shorewood Hills, 

Dane County, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation (the 

“Village”), and its successors and assigns, the permanent 

easement hereinafter described. 

 

1. Permanent Easement.  Grantor does hereby 

convey, grant, transfer, and assign to the Village an 

exclusive permanent easement over, under and across the 

premises described and depicted as the “Utility Easement” 

in Exhibits A and B (the “Permanent Easement Area”) to 

construct, maintain, inspect, operate, repair, replace and 

reconstruct a storm sewer main, including necessary 

underground and aboveground facilities, accessories and 

appurtenances.  The Village shall have the right to come 

upon the Permanent Easement Area at any time and for all purposes relating to the exercise 

of its rights hereunder.  The Village shall give Grantor written notice prior to undertaking 

any activities within the Permanent Easement Area that require excavation or interference 

with traffic or parking activities within the Permanent Easement Area, and shall reasonably 

cooperate with Grantor to undertake such activities in a manner that minimizes disruption 

to Grantor’s operations. 

 

2. Restrictions on Grantor.  Grantor shall not take any action or permit others 

to take any action that interferes with or is inconsistent with the Village’s rights under this 

Easement.  In particular, Grantor shall not install any structure of any kind upon the 

Permanent Easement Area.  Grantor shall not drill in or upon, or change the grade of the 

Permanent Easement Area, and Grantor shall not take any action that impairs or impedes 

the use of the Permanent Easement Area for the construction and operation of the storm 

sewer easement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantor may construct and maintain a 

parking lot on the surface of the Permanent Easement Area.  

 

3. Grantor Obligations.  Except as otherwise provided herein, Grantor shall 

have no obligations or liability for the condition of the Permanent Easement Area or 

improvements thereon from and after the date of recording hereof.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 

RETURN TO: 

Matthew P. Dregne 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 
P.O. Box 1784 
Madison, WI  53701-1784 

P.I.N. 

 



 

 

4.  Restoration of Surface.  The Village shall restore the surface of the 

Permanent Easement Area disturbed by the Village to its condition before the disturbance. 

 

5. Binding Effect and Assignability.  The Easement granted by this document 

shall run with the lands described herein, is binding upon the heirs, successors and assigns 

of Grantor, and shall benefit the Village, its successors and assigns. 
 

6. Grantor Warranty.  Grantor represents and warrants that, excepting a 

mortgage interest held by Park Bank, it is the sole owner of the property described herein, 

and that no other deed, mortgage or easement prohibits Grantor from conveying, granting, 

transferring, or assigning to the Village the easement rights granted under this Agreement.  

Grantor warrants that Grantor’s execution and delivery of the Easement Agreement have 

been duly authorized by Grantor, and do not violate, conflict with, or constitute a default 

under any agreement or instrument binding upon Grantor. 
 

7. Non-Use.  Non-use or limited use of the rights granted in this Agreement 

shall not prevent the benefited party from later use of the rights to the fullest extent 

authorized in this Agreement. 

  



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and the City have caused this instrument to be 

executed this ___________ day of _________________, 2018. 

 

UNIVERSITY STATION LIMITED 

PARTNERSHIP 

By: Flad Development & Investment Corp., Its 

General Partner 

 

      By: _____________________________ 

       John J. Flad, President 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN )  

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE ) 

 

 Personally, came before me this ____ day of _______________, 2018 the above named 

John J. Flad, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and 

acknowledged the same on behalf of Flad Development & Investment Corp., as general partner 

of University Station Limited Partnership. 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin 

      My Commission:     

 

 

 



 

 

CONSENT OF LIENHOLDER AND MORTGAGE SUBORDINATION 

 

For value received and to induce the Village to construct certain public improvements, 

Park Bank (“Lienholder”), as holder of a Mortgage, hereby consents to the execution and 

delivery of the foregoing Storm Sewer Easement Agreement by the Owner, and hereby 

subordinates its Mortgage (and any other liens that it may obtain with respect to the Property) to 

the Storm Sewer Easement Agreement.  Lienholder acknowledges that the Village is relying on 

the consent of Lienholder and Lienholder’s agreement to subordinate its Mortgage to the 

Easement.  Lienholder acknowledges that the execution and delivery of the Storm Sewer 

Easement Agreement by Owner is in Lienholder’s best interest. Lienholder’s agreement to 

consent to the Easement is binding on the assigns and successors of Lienholder.   

 

LIENHOLDER: 

___________________________________ 

 

By _________________________________ 

Its _________________________________ 

 

By _________________________________ 

Its _________________________________ 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

COUNTY OF ____________ 

 

 Personally came before me, this _______ day of _____________, 2018, the above-named 

__________________________ and _________________________ 

of_______________________, known to me to be the persons who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same, on behalf of _________________________. 

 

       

Print name:       

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My Commission     
     
 

 

 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 

 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

APPROVING A TERMINATION OF EASEMENTS AGREEMENT 

 

RECITAL 

The Village, and Marshall Court Investors, LLC, DPPG, LLC, 2715 Marshall Court, LLC, and 

700 University Bay Drive, LLC  wish to terminate certain cross-easements in order to facilitate 

the dedication of certain lands for public street and bike path purposes. 

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills hereby resolves 

as follows: 

1. The Termination of Easements Agreement attached as Attachment A (the “Agreement”) is 

approved. 

 

2. The Village President, Village Clerk, Village Administrator and Village Attorney are 

authorized to execute the Agreement and take all other actions needed to implement the 

Agreement. 

The above Resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the Village Board of the Village 

of Shorewood Hills on the _______ day of _____________________, 2018. 

APPROVED 

 

By _____________________________  

David Renforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST 

 

________________________________ 

Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

 

Attachment A – Termination of Easements Agreement 



ATTACHMENT  A 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Document Number 

 
 

TERMINATION OF 

EASEMENTS 
 
 

Document Title 

 

 
 

        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recording Area 

 Name and Return Address: 

 
Jenifer L. Kraemer 

von Briesen & Roper, s.c. 

10 East Doty Street, Suite 900 

Madison, WI 53703 

 
 
PIN:   

 

181/0709-212-8035-1 

181/0709-212-0014-1 

181/0709-212-8077-1 

181/0709-212-0007-1 

181/0709-212-0050-1 

181/0709-212-0056-6 

181/0709-212-8067-7 

181/0709-212-8085-5 

181-0709-212-8080-0 

181/0709-212-8090-8 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

This document was drafted by: 
 

Jenifer L. Kraemer 

von Briesen & Roper, s.c. 

10 East Doty Street, Suite 900 

Madison, WI 53703 



2 

 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into on this ___ day of November, 

2018, by 2715 Marshall Court, LLC, 700 University Bay Drive, LLC, Village of Shorewood Hills, 

Marshall Court Investors, LLC, and DPPG, LLC.   

Marshall Court Investors, LLC shall be known as “MCI”; and 2715 Marshall Court, LLC, 

700 University Bay Drive, LLC, Village of Shorewood Hills, and DPPG, LLC shall collectively 

be known as the “Other Owners.”  Together, MCI and the Other Owners may be referred to as the 

“Owners.” 

WHEREAS, The Village of Shorewood Hills is the owner of certain real property in the 

Village of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, known as Parcel number 181/0709-212-8035-1 and 

certain property dedicated to the Village for public use consisting of Parcel numbers 

181/0709-212-0014-1 and 181/0709-212-8077-1 (collectively, the “Village Property”) as 

identified on Exhibit A and more specifically described in Exhibit A-1; 

WHEREAS, 700 University Bay Drive, LLC is the owner of certain real property in the 

Village of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, known as 700 University Bay Drive (Lot 1 of 

CSM 13968) (the “700 UBD Property”) which includes the parcel formerly known as Lot 2, Farley 

Plat and portions of the adjacent parking parcel.  The 700 UBD Property is identified on Exhibit 

A and more specifically described on Exhibit A-2 attached hereto. 

WHEREAS, 2715 Marshall Court, LLC is the owner of certain real property in the Village 

of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, known as 2709 Marshall Court (Lot 1 of CSM 13365) (the “2709 

Property”), which includes the parcels formerly known as Lots 3, 4 and 5 of Farley Plat and 

portions of the adjacent parking parcels, as identified on Exhibit A and more specifically described 

in Exhibit A-3. 

WHEREAS, Marshall Court Investors, LLC is the owner of the real property in the Village 

of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, known as 2725 Marshall Court (the “2725 Property”), which 

includes the parcel known as Lot 6 of Farley Plat and portions of additional property, all as 

identified on Exhibit A and more specifically described in Exhibit A-4; 

WHEREAS, Marshall Court Investors, LLC is the owner of the real property in the Village 

of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, consisting of the two parking parcels known as Parcel Number 

181/0709-212-8067-7 (collectively, the “Parking Parcels”), as identified on Exhibit A and more 

specifically described in Exhibit A-5.   

WHEREAS, DPPG, LLC is the owner of certain real property in the Village of Shorewood 

Hills, Wisconsin, including the property located at 2727 Marshall Court, identified as the “DPPG 

Lot” on Exhibit A and that certain parking parcel identified as “DPPG Parking” on Exhibit A 

(collectively, the “DPPG Property”) and more specifically described in Exhibit A-6; 

WHEREAS, Marshall Court Investors, LLC is the owner of the real property in the Village 

of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, known as 2801 Marshall Court (the “2801 Property”), as 

identified on Exhibit A and more specifically described in Exhibit A-7.  The 2801 Property is also 

identified as “Lot 2” on Exhibit B. 



3 

 

WHEREAS, the properties described in Exhibits A-1 through A-7 shall collectively be 

referred to in this Agreement as the “Properties”; 

WHEREAS, the undersigned are all of the owners of the property that was subject to the 

“Agreement Creating Cross Easements” recorded in the Office of the Dane County Register of 

Deeds on November 6, 1981, in Volume 3210 of Records, Page 14 as Document Number 1724341, 

as amended by the “Amendment to an Agreement Creating Cross Easements (Consent to Sale and 

Management Issues)” recorded in the Office of the Dane County Register of Deeds on July 14, 

1999, as Document Number 3134366 (collectively, the “Cross Easements”) 

WHEREAS, the Cross Easements were terminated as to certain of the Properties, as set 

forth in two separate agreements regarding the cross-easements recorded as Document No. 

4913769 (as corrected by Document Number 4918091) and Document Number 5153429, but the 

Cross Easements remain in effect as to other properties, including but not limited to the Parking 

Parcels;  

WHEREAS, MCI is or will be developing the 2725 Property and the 2801 Property, and 

as part of those projects, MCI or its successors or assigns, will dedicate a part of the Parking Parcels 

to the Village of Shorewood Hills for public right of way use, making the Cross Easements over 

the Parking Parcels unnecessary. 

WHEREAS, the undersigned wish to terminate the Cross Easements as they affect the 

Parking Parcels and enter into this new Agreement according to the terms and conditions set forth 

herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 1. Termination of Cross Easements with regard to the Parking Parcels.  Each of the 

Other Owners terminate all rights, privileges, easements and interests they have in the Parking 

Parcels or in the Cross Easements as they affect the Parking Parcels, including without limitation 

all rights, privileges, easements and interests created under the Cross Easements.  This termination 

shall be effective immediately upon recording of this Agreement.   

 

 2. Creation of a Public Right of Way.  MCI agrees, as a benefit to the public and to 

the Other Owners, to dedicate to the Village the following property identified on the attached 

Exhibit B:  (a) a strip of land approximately 37 feet wide and identified as “Catafalque Drive – 

Dedicated to the Public for R/W & Bike Path Purposes” for the purpose of creating a public right-

of-way allowing access to the Properties, which shall be achieved by the construction of a public 

street allowing motor vehicle access; and (b) a strip of land approximately 14 feet wide along the 

Southwestern boundary of the 2801 Property dedicated to the public for bike path purposes 

(collectively, the “Additional Right of Way”).  The dedications making up the Additional Right of 

Way shall be accomplished through a quit claim deed to the Village, an easement, or through the 

recording of a certified survey map, and the Additional Right of Way property shall be dedicated 

free and clear of any liens, encumbrances or easements that would prevent the unimpeded use of 



4 

 

these areas for public right-of-way purposes.  By signing below, the Village agrees that it will 

accept the dedication of the Additional Right of Way for the purposes set forth herein. 

 

 3. Consent to Dedication.  Each of the Other Owners hereby consents to the dedication 

or transfer of all or any portion of the Parking Parcels to the Village of Shorewood Hills (the 

“Village”) for the creation of a public right of way providing access to the Properties and the future 

construction of a bike path.  As part of its development agreement with the Village, MCI shall 

obtain the Village’s agreement that it will accept the dedication of that portion of the Parking 

Parcels conveyed, for the purposes set forth herein.   

 

 4. Cross Easements no longer binding on Dedicated Property.  The parties agree that 

the Cross Easements shall no longer apply to the Parking Parcels and MCI and its successors and 

assigns shall have no obligations or liabilities under the Cross Easements, including but not limited 

to no responsibility or liability for management, taxes, assessments, plowing, paving and repairing, 

insurance and the like.  Except as modified by this Agreement, the Cross Easements shall remain 

in full force and effect.   

 

 5. Effective Date.  The parties agree that this Agreement will be held in escrow by 

First American Title Company and released from escrow only when First American Title Company 

has in its possession: (a) those signed Certified Survey Map, Warranty Deed, and/or Quit Claim 

Deed(s)  necessary to transfer or dedicate the Additional Right of Way to the Village on terms 

consistent with this Agreement in accordance with sections 2 and 3 above (the “Transfer 

Documents”) and (b) the fully executed agreement between the Village, DPPG, and MCI (or its 

successor in interest to the 2725 Property) relating to the conveyance of lands from DPPG to the 

Village for street and bike path purposes, and at such time, this Agreement and the Transfer 

Documents shall be submitted promptly for recording (“Effective Date”).   

 

6. Definition of Owner. “Owner” as used herein shall mean and refer to the record 

owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of a fee simple title to a portion of the Properties 

and the term “Owners” shall mean and refer to all of the record owners having fee simple title to 

any portion of the Properties, but excluding in each case those having such interest merely as 

security for the performance of any obligation.   

 

 7. Binding Effect.  This Agreement is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 

MCI, the Other Owners and their heirs, successors and assigns. 

 

8. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any covenant, condition, term 

or provision in this Agreement shall not affect the validity and enforceability of any other covenant, 

condition, term or provision. 

 

9. Amendment.  This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written 

agreement signed by all Owners of the Properties affected thereby and recorded in the Dane 

County Register of Deeds office 

 

 



5 

 

10. No Dedication.  Nothing contained in this document shall, or shall be deemed to, 

constitute a gift or dedication of any portion of any property to the general public or for the benefit 

of the general public or for any public purpose whatsoever.  In the future, each of the Owners may 

transfer or dedicate any portion of their own property to the Village for any of the purposes 

contemplated by this Agreement, and the undersigned consent to said transfer or dedication, 

notwithstanding anything in the Cross Easements to the contrary.   

 

11. Consent of Lenders.  Any mortgage holders or lenders having an interest in the 

Property have had the opportunity to review and accept the terms and conditions set forth herein 

and sign below for the sole purpose of acknowledging their consent to the Property being 

encumbered by this Agreement. 

 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall be one and the same agreement. 

 

 

[signature pages to follow] 



6 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set 

forth below. 

 

2715 Marshall Court, LLC 

 

By:          

 

Name:         

 

Title:          
 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE  ) 

 
 Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ______________, 2018, the above named 

___________________________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

 

  _________________________________________  

  Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

  My commission [is permanent]/[expires _________] 

 

 

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE: 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name:  ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 

  



7 

 

700 University Bay Drive, LLC 

 

 

By:          

 

Name:         

 

Title:          
 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE  ) 

 
 Personally appeared before me this _______ day of ______________, 2018, the above named 

___________________________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

 

  _________________________________________  

  Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

  My commission [is permanent]/[expires _________] 

 

 

 

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE: 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name:  ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 

 



8 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills, WI 
 

 

By:          

 

Name:         

 

Title:          

 
 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE  ) 

 
 Personally appeared before me this _______ day of ______________, 2018, the above named 

____________________________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

  _________________________________________  

  Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

  My commission [is permanent]/[expires _________] 

 



9 

 

Marshall Court Investors, LLC 

 

 

 

By:          

 

Name:         

 

Title:          

 

 

 
STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE  ) 

 
 Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ______________, 2018, the above named 

________________  to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and 

acknowledged the same. 

 

  _________________________________________  

  Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

  My commission [is permanent]/[expires _________] 

 

 

 

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name:  ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 

  



10 

 

DPPG, LLC 
 

 

By:          

 

Name:         

 

Title:          

 
 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF DANE  ) 

 
 Personally appeared before me this _______ day of ______________, 2018, the above named 

____________________________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 

instrument and acknowledged the same. 

 

  _________________________________________  

  Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

  My commission [is permanent]/[expires _________] 

 

 

 

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name:  ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 



11 

 

EXHIBIT A 

MAP OF PROPERTY 



12 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

VILLAGE PROPERTY 

 

Real property in the City of Shorewood Hills, County of Dane, State of Wisconsin, described as 

follows: 

All that portion of the East 983.40 feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of the Northwest 

Quarter (NW 1/4) of Section 21, Township 7 North, Range 9 East, Dane County, Wisconsin, 

lying between a line 25 feet Northeasterly of and parallel to the center line of the Chicago, 

Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific Railroad right-of-way and a line 74.50 feet Northeasterly of and 

parallel to said center line, more fully described as follows: 

Commencing at the North Quarter corner of said Section 21; thence South 00º07'01" East 

(recorded as South 00º06'16" East) along the East line of said Northwest Quarter of Section 21, 

428.03 feet; thence North 72º41'00" West, 34.59 feet to the point of beginning of this 

description; thence South 00º07'01" East, 51.88 feet; thence North 72º41'00" West, 111.41 feet; 

said line being parallel to and 25 feet perpendicular to the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, 

St. Paul and Pacific Railroad’s main tract; thence North 00º07'01" West, 51.88 feet; thence South 

72º41'00" East, 111.41 feet to the point of beginning. 

Together with Cross Easements established in Agreement Creating Cross Easements recorded 

November 6, 1981, Volume 3210 of Records, page 14, as Document No. 1724341. Amendment 

recorded July 14, 1999, as Document No. 3134366. 

APN: 181/0709-212-8035-1 (retired parcel number 181/0709-212-8017-1]  

 

Property dedicated to the Village for public use consisting of Parcel numbers: 

181/0709-212-0014-1  --  That part of Lot 1 dedicated to Village for public purposes in CSM 

13968 recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Dane County, Wisconsin on May 18, 

2015, as Document No. 515223. 

 

181/0709-212-8077-1  --  That part of Lot 1 dedicated to Village for public purposes in CSM 

13365 recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Dane County, Wisconsin on 

September 19, 2012, as Document No. 4914123. 



13 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 

700 UBD PROPERTY 

 

Lot 1 of CSM 13968 recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Dane County, Wisconsin 

on May 8, 2015, in Volume 93 of Certified Survey Maps, Sheet 137, as Document No. 5152223. 

Tax Parcel No.:  181/0709-212-0007-1 

 



14 

 

EXHIBIT A-3 

2709 PROPERTY 

Lot 1 of CSM 13365 recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Dane County, Wisconsin 

on September 19, 2012, in Volume 86 of Certified Survey Maps, page 269, as Document No. 

4914123. 

Tax Parcel No.:  181/0709-212-0050-1 

 



15 

 

EXHIBIT A-4 

2725 PROPERTY 

 

LOT SIX (6), FARLEY PLAT, VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS, DANE COUNTY, 

WISCONSIN. 

AND 

PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 Of THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 

7 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS, DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

SECTION 21, THENCE NORTH 89º30'' WEST 660.95 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 17º47' 

WEST, 212.7 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION, THENCE 

NORTH 72º13' WEST, 28.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 17º47' EAST, 1l0.15 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 62º16' EAST, 24.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 72º13' EAST, 4.36 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 17º47' WEST 106.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

TAX PARCEL NO. 181/0709-212-0056-6 

 



16 

 

EXHIBIT A-5 

PARKING PARCELS 

THAT PORTION OF THE EAST 983.4 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST, DANE 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, LYING BETWEEN A LINE 25 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF AND 

PARALLEL TO THE CENTERUNE OF THE CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE, ST. PAUL AND 

PACIFIC RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY AND A LINE 74.5 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF 

AND PARALLEL TO SAID CENTERLINE, MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 21; THENCE 

SOUTH 0º06'16" EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 21, 479.76 FEET; THENCE NORTH 72º41'10" WEST 675.12 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION; THENCE NORTH 72º41'10" WEST, 

355.33 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00º06'16" WEST 51.73 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 72º41'10" 

EAST, 355.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00º06'16" EAST, 51.73 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, EXCEPT FOR LAND CONVEYED IN WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 2480074 AND FURTHER EXCEPT LAND CONVEYED IN WARRANTY 

DEED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 3134754. 

TAX PARCEL NO. 181/0709-212-8067-7 



17 

 

EXHIBIT A-6 

DPPG PROPERTY 

 

First Parcel: 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 21, Township 7 North, Range 9 East, in 

the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, described as follows:  Beginning at 

the Northeast comer of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 21; thence North 89 degrees 30' West, 

660.95 feet; thence South 17 degrees 47' West, 212.7 feet; thence North 72 degrees 13' West, 

28.0 feet to the point of beginning of this description; thence continue North 72 degrees 13' 

West, 92 feet; thence North 17 degrees 47' East, 126.29 feet; thence South 62 degrees 16' East, 

93.41 feet; thence South 17 degrees 47' West, 110.15 feet to the point of beginning; EXCEPT 

lands conveyed by deed recorded November 2, 1987 in volume 10765 of Records, page 23, as 

Document No. 2052276. 

Tax Parcel No.:  181/0709-212-8085-5 

 

Second parcel: 

All that portion of the East 983.40 feet of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of 

Section 21, Township 7 North, Range 9 East, Dane County, Wisconsin, lying between a line 25 

feet northeasterly of and parallel to the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul, and 

Pacific Railroad right-of-way and a line 74.50 feet northeasterly of and parallel to said center 

line, more fully described as follows: 

Commencing at the North Quarter comer of said Section 21; thence South 00 degrees 07 minutes 

01 second East (recorded as South 00 degrees 06 minutes 16 seconds East) along the east line of 

said Northwest Quarter of Section 21, 428.03 feet; thence North 72 degrees 41 minutes and 00 

seconds West, 787.87 feet to the point of beginning of this description; thence South 00 degrees 

07 minutes 01 seconds East, 51.88 feet; thence North 72 degrees 41 minutes 00 seconds West 

92.00 feet; said line being parallel to and 25 feet perpendicular to the center line of the Chicago, 

Milwaukee, St. Paul, and Pacific Railroad’s main track; thence North 00 degrees 07 minutes 01 

second West, 51.88 feet; thence South 72 degrees 41 minutes 00 seconds East, 92.00 feet to the 

point of beginning. Containing 4,554 square feet or 0.1045 acres. 

Tax Parcel No.:  181/0709-212-8080-0 



18 

 

EXHIBIT A-7 

2801 PROPERTY 

 

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NE1/4NW1/4) of Section Twenty-One 

(21), Township Seven (7) North, Range Nine (9) East, in the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane 

County, Wisconsin, described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 

of Section 21; thence North 89°30' West, 660.95 feet to the point of beginning of this 

description; thence continue North 89°30' West, 322.55 feet; thence South 1°12' West, 122.1 feet 

to the Northerly line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific Railroad right-of-way; 

thence South 72°13' East along said Railroad right-of-way, 270.3 feet; thence North 17°47' East, 

212.7 feet to the point of beginning.  Except that part conveyed .in Volume 841 of Deeds, Page 

26, as Document No. 1195382; and that part conveyed in Volume 839 of Deeds, Page 561, as 

Document No. 1193626; and that part conveyed in Volume 839 of Deeds, Page 564, as 

Document No. 1193628; and that part conveyed in Volume 10765 of Records, Page 16, as 

Document No. 2052269; and that part conveyed in Volume 12015 of Records, Page 61, as 

Document No. 2106621. 

Tax Parcel No.:  181/0709-212-8090-8 

 



19 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14 

 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

(LODGIC REDEVELOPMENT) 
 

RECITALS 

A. Marshall Court Investors, LLC has requested Village approval of the certified survey map (the 

“CSM”) attached as Attachment A. 

B. On August 7, 2018, the Plan Commission recommended that the CSM be approved. 

C. Approval of the CSM is necessary to accomplish the redevelopment of certain lands on 

Marshall Court, and to accomplish the dedication of certain lands for public street and bike 

path purposes. 

RESOLUTION 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills hereby resolves as 

follows: 

1. The certified survey map is approved, subject to the conditions in Section 2, below. 

2. The following conditions must be satisfied before the Village will sign the CSM: 

a. University Station Limited Partnership and Marshall Court Investors, LLC must sign 

the CSM, and must sign the Tri-Party Agreement approved by the Village of 

Shorewood Hills Village Board in Resolution 2018-12. 

b. Marshall Court Investors, LLC and DPPG, LLC must sign the Property Acquisition 

and Improvement Agreement approved by the Village of Shorewood Hills Village 

Board in Resolution No. 2018-11. 

c. Marshall Court Investors, LLP, DPPG, LLC, 700 University Bay Drive, LLC, and 2715 

Marshall Court, LLC must sign Easement Termination Agreement approved by the 

Village of Shorewood Hills Village Board in Resolution No. 2018-13. 

3. Subject to satisfaction of the conditions in Section 2, above, the Village Clerk, Village 

Administrator and Village Attorney are authorized to execute the CSM and take all other 

actions needed to approve and authorize the recording of the CSM. 

  



 2 

The above Resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the Village Board of the Village of 

Shorewood Hills on the _______ day of _____________________, 2018. 

 

APPROVED 

 

By _____________________________  

David Renforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST 
 

________________________________ 

Karla Endres, Village Clerk 

Attachment A – Certified Survey Map 



ATTACHMENT  A 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 


